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ORDER 
 
By the Commission: 
 
 Under Section 3 of the Illinois Gas Pipeline Safety Act ("Act") [220 ILCS 20/3], 
the Illinois Commerce Commission ("Commission") is required to 
 

adopt rules establishing minimum safety standards for the transportation 
of gas and for pipeline facilities. Such rules shall be at least as inclusive, 
as stringent, and compatible with, the minimum safety standards adopted 
by the Secretary of Transportation under the Federal Act. 

 
The Commission has incorporated by reference applicable federal rules at 83 Ill. Adm. 
Code 590, "Minimum Safety Standards for Transportation of Gas and for Gas Pipeline 
Facilities" ("Part 590"). Section 590.10(a) incorporates "49 CFR 191.23, 192, 193 and 
199 as of January 1, 2009, as its minimum safety standards for the transportation of 
gas and for gas pipeline facilities." 
 
 In a Staff Report dated October 12, 2010, the Staff of the Commission's Pipeline 
Safety Program ("Staff") detailed the alleged violations of the Shawneetown Municipal 
Gas System (“Shawneetown System” or "System") for failure to comply with specified 
minimum federal safety standards for transportation of natural gas incorporated by Part 
590. Shawneetown System is a person as defined by Section 2.01 of the Act engaged 
in the transportation of gas and owning or operating pipeline facilities. and, as such, is 
subject to the Act (See 220 ILCS 20/2.01, 2.03, and 2.04). Section 6(a)(1) of the Act 
requires that every such person shall "at all times after the date any applicable safety 
standard established under this Act takes effect comply with the requirements of such 
standard." [220 ILCS 20/6(a)(1)] 
 
 As recounted in the Staff Report, the Commission’s Pipeline Safety Staff (“Staff”) 
conducted compliance record audits of the Shawneetown System's maintenance 



records and anti-drug and alcohol testing program and records on September 23, 2009 
and April 15, 2010. Staff’s review identified a number of alleged violations of the 
Sections of the Code of Federal Regulations incorporated by Part 590 and a violation of 
83 Ill. Adm. Code 520. 
 

Compliance Audit – September 23, 2009 
 
 As recounted in the Staff Report, on September 23, 2009, Staff audited System 
records to determine compliance with the requirements of the federal rules incorporated 
by reference and other relevant Commission rules adopted under authority of the Act. 
The Staff found the following: 

 
(1) 49 CFR §192.615(c) requires each operator to establish and maintain liai-

son with appropriate fire, police, and other public officials to share 
information regarding resources or entities that may respond to a natural 
gas emergency, acquaint those officials with the operator’s ability to re-
spond to an emergency, identify the types of gas pipeline emergencies 
that require notification, and plan for mutual assistance.  Staff requested 
documentation required to verify compliance with 49 CFR Section 
192.615 (c). The System could not provide Staff with such documentation. 

 
(2) 49 CFR §192.616(e) requires the operator’s Public Awareness Program to 

include activities to advise affected school districts, businesses, and resi-
dents of the location of pipeline facilities. Staff requested documentation 
required to verify compliance with 49 CFR §192.616(e). The System could 
not provide Staff with such documentation. 

 
(3) 49 CFR §192.625(f) requires the operator to assure proper concentration 

of odorant in the natural gas system through periodic sampling of the 
combustible gases. Instrumentation is to be used to verify that the odorant 
is readily detectable to a person with a normal sense of smell. Staff re-
quested documentation of odor intensity testing as required by 49 CFR 
§192.625(f). The System could not provide Staff with such documentation. 

 
(4) 49 CFR §192.721(b) outlines operator requirements to periodically patrol 

mains in places or on structures where anticipated physical movement or 
external loading could cause failure or leakage. Such locations include 
mains attached to buildings, mains on bridges, or mains crossing under 
highways or railroads. Staff requested documentation necessary to verify 
compliance with 49 CFR §192.721(b) relating to distribution system patrol-
ling. The System could not provide Staff with such documentation. 

 
(5) 49 CFR §192.481(a) requires the operator to inspection each pipeline or 

portion of pipeline that is exposed to the atmosphere for evidence of at-
mospheric corrosion at least once every three calendar years with 
intervals not exceeding 39 months. Staff requested documentation of at-



mospheric corrosion control monitoring as required by 49 CFR 
§192.481(a). The System could not provide Staff with such documenta-
tion. 

 
(6) 83 Ill. Adm. Code 520.10(b) requires operators to develop and follow train-

ing procedures which will assure that its field employees engaged in 
construction, operation, inspection and maintenance of the gas system 
are properly trained. Staff requested the operators’ Training Program re-
quired by Section 520.10(b). The System could not provide Staff with a 
training program. 

 
 In the Staff Report, Staff recounts efforts that it made to contact the governmen-
tal authorities responsible for the operation of the Shawneetown System. 
 

Compliance Audit – April 15, 2010 
 
 As related in the Staff Report, on April 15, 2010, Staff performed a facilities 
inspection of the System and requested further records of the System. Staff found the 
following: 
 

(1) Staff requested records and performed a facility inspection to determine if 
49 CFR §199.113(b), Employee Assistance Program, requirements had 
been met. Section 199.113(b) requires education under each Employee 
Assistance Program to include, at a minimum, display and distribution of 
informational material, display and distribution of a community hot-line tel-
ephone number for employee assistance, and display and distribution of 
the employer’s policy regarding the use of prohibited drugs. The System 
could not provide Staff with documentation relating to those activities and 
Staff could not locate displayed materials during the April 15, 2010, in-
spection. 

 
(2) 49 CFR §199.113(c) requires training under each Employee Assistance 

Program for supervisory personnel who will determine whether an em-
ployee must be drug tested based on reasonable cause. The training 
must include one 60-minute period of training on the specific, contempo-
raneous physical, behavioral and performance indicators of probable drug 
use. Shawneetown System could not provide Staff with documentation of 
training of supervisory personnel as required by 49 CFR §§199.113(c), 
199.117(a)(4), 199.241, and 199.227(c)(6)(iii). 

 
(3) 49 CFR §199.117(a)(4) requires that records confirming that supervisors 

and employees have been trained as required by this Part must be kept 
for a minimum of 3 years. The training for employees must include notice 
of the availability of and Employee Assistance Program regarding drug 
use and the operators’ policy regarding the use of prohibited drugs. The 
training for supervisors must also include methods to determine if an em-



ployee should be tested based on reasonable cause. The System could 
not provide Staff with documentation regarding training of supervisory 
personnel required by Section 199.117(a)(4). 

 
(4) 49 CFR §199.241, Training for Supervisors, requires each operator to en-

sure that persons designated to determine whether reasonable suspicion 
exists to require a covered employee to undergo alcohol testing under 
Section 199.225(b) receive at least 60 minutes of training on physical, be-
havioral, speech, and performance indicators of probable alcohol misuse. 
49 CFR § 199.227(c)(6)(iii) requires documentation of training provided to 
supervisors for the purpose of qualifying the supervisors to make a deter-
mination concerning the need for alcohol testing based on reasonable 
suspicion. The System could not provide Staff with documentation regard-
ing training of supervisors required by 49 CFR §§199.225(b) and 
199.227(c)(6)(iii). 

 
(5) 49 CFR §199.119(d), Reporting of anti-drug testing results, allows an em-

ployer to use a service agent to perform random selection for drug testing 
of operator employees that may be part of a larger random testing pool of 
covered employees. However, the operator must ensure that the service 
agent used is testing at the appropriate percentage established for the in-
dustry and that covered employees are in a random testing pool. The 
System could not provide Staff with documentation that covered em-
ployees were included in the drug testing pool or to confirm the service 
agent performing random selections regarding anti-drug testing of covered 
employees for Shawneetown is testing at the appropriate percentage rate 
as established by Section 199.105(c). 

 
(6) 49 CFR §192.285(a) and (b), Plastic pipe, Qualifying Persons to Make 

Joints, states that no person may make a plastic pipe joint unless that 
person has been qualified under the applicable joining procedure and had 
a specimen joint tested in accordance with one of the methods listed un-
der 49 CFR §192.283. 49 CFR §192.287, Plastic pipe, Inspection of 
Joints, requires the operator to be qualified by appropriate training or ex-
perience in evaluation of the acceptability of plastic pipe joints made 
under the applicable joining procedure. The System could not provide 
Staff with documentation to confirm that operator personnel had been 
qualified to make plastic fusion joints under the applicable procedure as 
required by 49 CFR § 192.285. The System also could not provide Staff 
with documentation confirming that operator personnel had been qualified 
by appropriate training or experience in the evaluation of acceptability of 
plastic joints as required by 49 CFR § 192.287. 

 
(7) Staff reviewed odor detection report records. The records track the reports 

of natural gas odors received by the operator, the time of a report and the 
response time. It was noted that an odor report call was received by 



Shawneetown at 8:00 am on September 1, 2009. The operator did not re-
spond to the report until 10:00 am that day. 49 CFR §192.615(a) requires 
each operator to establish written procedures to minimize the hazard re-
sulting from a gas pipeline emergency. At a minimum, the procedure must 
provide for prompt and effective response to a notice of each type of 
emergency including gas detected inside or near a building, which is iden-
tified in the Code of Federal Regulations as an emergency response 
situation. Prompt response is defined as responding without delay. The 
System could not provide Staff with documentation of any reason for the 
delayed response to the odor notification. 

 
(8) Staff requested documentation to verify compliance with 49 CFR 

§192.747(a) regarding distribution system valve maintenance. The Sec-
tion requires that each valve that may be necessary for the safe operation 
of the distribution system be checked and serviced at intervals not ex-
ceeding 15 months, but at least once each calendar year. The System 
could not provide Staff with documentation demonstrating that distribution 
system valves were checked and serviced as required in 2009. 

 
(9) Staff requested records necessary to determine compliance with 49 CFR 

§ 192.807(b) regarding operator qualification record keeping.  Records 
supporting an individual’s current qualification shall be maintained while 
the individual is performing covered tasks. Records of prior qualification 
and records of individuals no longer performing covered tasks must be re-
tained for a period of five years. Covered tasks include any task that is 
performed on a pipeline facility, is an operation or maintenance task, is 
performed as a requirement of Part 192, and affects the operation or inte-
grity of the pipeline. The System could not provide Staff with 
documentation supporting current or previous employee individuals per-
forming covered tasks. 

 
 The Staff Report presents a sufficient basis to initiate a proceeding to determine 
whether the System has violated the federal rules incorporated by reference in 83 Ill. 
Adm. Code 590 and the requirements mandated by 83 Ill. Adm. Code 52010(b). 
Section 7(a) of the Act states: 
 

Any person violating paragraph (a) of Section 6 of this Act or any rule or 
order issued under this Act is subject to a civil penalty not to exceed the 
maximum penalties established by Section 60122(a)(1) of Title 49 of the 
United States Code for each day the violation persists. 

 
The maximum penalty established by 49 USC 60122(a)(1) is $100,000 for each 
violation. A separate violation occurs for each day the violation continues. The maxi-
mum civil penalty under this Section for a related series of violations is $1,000,000. 
 



 The Commission, being fully advised in the premises, is of the opinion and finds 
that: 
 

(1) the Commission has jurisdiction over the subject matter herein and the 
parties hereto; 

 
(2) Shawneetown, Illinois is a municipality subject to the Illinois Gas Pipeline 

Safety Act in that it is a person who engages in the transportation of gas 
or who owns or operates pipeline facilities; 

 
(3) Shawneetown, Illinois should be made a respondent to this proceeding; 
 
(4) the Commission has incorporated as its rules specified federal rules relat-

ing to gas pipeline safety through its adoption of 83 Ill. Adm. Code 590; 
 
(5) the Commission has adopted 83 Ill. Adm. Code 520, "Training Programs 

for Natural Gas System Operating Personnel;" 
 
(6) the Staff Report from the Pipeline Safety Program provides a basis for the 

initiation of a proceeding to determine whether the System has failed to 
comply with the requirements of the Code of Federal Regulations that the 
Commission has incorporated by reference by its adoption of 83 Ill. Adm. 
Code 590 and the requirements of 83 Ill. Adm. Code 520(a); 

 
(7) a proceeding should be initiated pursuant to Section 7 of the Illinois Gas 

Pipeline Safety Act [220 ILCS 20/7] to determine whether the Company 
has failed to comply with the plastic pipe fusion requalifications at 49 CFR 
§192.285: 

 
(8) the Staff Report dated October 12, 2010 should be made a part of the 

record of this proceeding; 
 

 IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED by the Illinois Commerce Commission that a 
proceeding be initiated to determine whether Shawneetown, Illinois, as operator of the 
Shawneetown Municipal Gas System, has failed to comply with the following require-
ments of the Code of Federal Regulations adopted by the Illinois Commerce 
Commission as required by Section 3 of the Illinois Gas Pipeline Safety Act and rules of 
the Commission adopted under the Act: 
 

(1) 49 CFR §192.615(c) that requires each operator to establish and maintain 
liaison with appropriate fire, police, and other public officials to share in-
formation regarding resources or entities that may respond to a natural 
gas emergency, acquaint those officials with the operator’s ability to re-
spond to an emergency, identify the types of gas pipeline emergencies 
that require notification, and plan for mutual assistance. 

 



(2) 49 CFR §192.616(e) that requires the operator’s Public Awareness Pro-
gram to include activities to advise affected school districts, businesses, 
and residents of the location of pipeline facilities. 

 
(3) 49 CFR §192.625(f) that requires the operator to assure proper concen-

tration of odorant in the natural gas system through periodic sampling of 
the combustible gases. Instrumentation is to be used to verify that the 
odorant is readily detectable to a person with a normal sense of smell. 

 
(4) 49 CFR §192.721(b) that outlines operator requirements to periodically 

patrol mains in places or on structures where anticipated physical move-
ment or external loading could cause failure or leakage. Such locations 
include mains attached to buildings, mains on bridges, or mains crossing 
under highways or railroads. 

 
(5) 49 CFR §192.481(a) that requires the operator to inspection each pipeline 

or portion of pipeline that is exposed to the atmosphere for evidence of 
atmospheric corrosion at least once every three calendar years with inter-
vals not exceeding 39 months. 

 
(6) 49 CFR §199.113(b), Employee Assistance Program, that requires educa-

tion under each Employee Assistance Program to include, at a minimum, 
display and distribution of informational material, display and distribution 
of a community hot-line telephone number for employee assistance, and 
display and distribution of the employer’s policy regarding the use of pro-
hibited drugs. 

 
(7) 49 CFR §199.113(c) that requires training under each Employee Assis-

tance Program for supervisory personnel who will determine whether an 
employee must be drug tested based on reasonable cause. The training 
must include one 60-minute period of training on the specific, contempo-
raneous physical, behavioral and performance indicators of probable drug 
use. 

 
(8) 49 CFR §199.117(a)(4) that requires that records confirming that supervi-

sors and employees have been trained as required by this Part must be 
kept for a minimum of 3 years. The training for employees must include 
notice of the availability of and Employee Assistance Program regarding 
drug use and the operators’ policy regarding the use of prohibited drugs. 
The training for supervisors must also include methods to determine if an 
employee should be tested based on reasonable cause. 

 
(9) 49 CFR §199.241, Training for Supervisors, that requires each operator to 

ensure that persons designated to determine whether reasonable suspi-
cion exists to require a covered employee to undergo alcohol testing 
under Section 199.225(b) receive at least 60 minutes of training on physi-



cal, behavioral, speech, and performance indicators of probable alcohol 
misuse. 49 CFR § 199.227(c)(6)(iii) requires documentation of training 
provided to supervisors for the purpose of qualifying the supervisors to 
make a determination concerning the need for alcohol testing based on 
reasonable suspicion. 

 
(10) 49 CFR §199.119(d), Reporting of anti-drug testing results, that allows an 

employer to use a service agent to perform random selection for drug test-
ing of operator employees that may be part of a larger random testing 
pool of covered employees. However, the operator must ensure that the 
service agent used is testing at the appropriate percentage established for 
the industry and that covered employees are in a random testing pool.  

 
(11) 49 CFR §192.285(a) and (b), Plastic pipe, Qualifying Persons to Make 

Joints, that states that no person may make a plastic pipe joint unless that 
person has been qualified under the applicable joining procedure and had 
a specimen joint tested in accordance with one of the methods listed un-
der 49 CFR §192.283 and 49 CFR §192.287, Plastic pipe, Inspection of 
Joints, that requires the operator to be qualified by appropriate training or 
experience in evaluation of the acceptability of plastic pipe joints made 
under the applicable joining procedure.  

 
(12) 49 CFR §192.615(a) that requires each operator to establish written pro-

cedures to minimize the hazard resulting from a gas pipeline emergency. 
At a minimum, the procedure must provide for prompt and effective re-
sponse to a notice of each type of emergency including gas detected 
inside or near a building, which is identified in the Code of Federal Regu-
lations as an emergency response situation. Prompt response is defined 
as responding without delay. 

 
(13) 49 CFR §192.747(a) regarding distribution system valve maintenance that 

requires that each valve that may be necessary for the safe operation of 
the distribution system be checked and serviced at intervals not exceeding 
15 months, but at least once each calendar year. 

 
(14) 49 CFR § 192.807(b) regarding operator qualification record keeping re-

quires that records supporting an individual’s current qualification shall be 
maintained while the individual is performing covered tasks. Records of 
prior qualification and records of individuals no longer performing covered 
tasks must be retained for a period of five years. Covered tasks include 
any task that is performed on a pipeline facility, is an operation or main-
tenance task, is performed as a requirement of Part 192, and affects the 
operation or integrity of the pipeline. 

 
(15) 83 Ill. Adm. Code 520.10(b) requires operators to develop and follow train-

ing procedures which will assure that its field employees engaged in 



construction, operation, inspection and maintenance of the gas system 
are properly trained. 

 
 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Shawneetown, Illinois, as operator of the 
Shawneetown Municipal Gas System is made respondent to this proceeding. 
 
 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Staff Report dated October 12, 2010 is 
made a part of the record of this proceeding. 
 
 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that respondent appear at the offices of the 
Commission at the time and date specified by the Administrative Law Judge assigned 
to this proceeding. 
 
 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that failure of the respondent to appear as ordered 
may result in findings that Shawneetown, Illinois, as operator of the Shawneetown 
Municipal Gas System has failed to comply with the enumerated requirements of the 
Code of Federal Regulations as incorporated by reference by the Illinois Commerce 
Commission and 83 Ill. Adm. Code 520 and may result in the imposition of civil 
penalties pursuant to Section 7 of the Illinois Gas Pipeline Safety Act. 
 
 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Order is not final; it is not subject to the 
Administrative Review Law. 
 
 By Order of the Commission this 20th day of October, 2010. 
 
 
 
 

(SIGNED) MANUEL FLORES 
 

Acting Chairman 
 


